

CHAPTER 779—H. F. No. 1713

[Coded]

An act providing for the preservation of historic sites, structures, and antiquities of state and national significance.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. [138.51] **Historic sites act; policy.** It is in the public interest to provide for the preservation of historic sites, buildings, structures, and antiquities of state and national significance for the inspiration, use, and benefit of the people of the state.

Sec. 2. [138.52] **Definitions.** Subdivision 1. Land or water areas containing historic or archeological value for the purposes of this act are designated as “state historic sites.” A “state historic site” is also an area designated by the Minnesota Historical Society as a site possessing historical value of state or national significance. The term “state historic site” includes the items defined in this section.

Subd. 2. A “state historical marker” is a plaque, sign, or marker authorized by the Minnesota Historical Society and the Minnesota Historic Sites and Markers Commission, and includes roadside markers maintained by the department of highways, the department of conservation, or other departments or agencies of the state and its governmental subdivisions.

Subd. 3. A “state historic monument” is an area so designated by statute as a state monument marked by a stone shaft or other memorial marker, and includes contiguous lands owned by the state or any of its governmental subdivisions.

Subd. 4. A “state archeological site” is an area, primarily relating to prehistoric man, designated by the Minnesota Historical Society and the state archeologist as possessing state or national significance.

Subd. 5. A “state geographic site” is a geographical feature of outstanding significance and includes, by way of example, the highest point in the state, and the Continental Divide. It is a site designated by the state geographical board as possessing state or national significance.

Sec. 3. [138.53] **State historic sites, registry.** Subdivision 1. The land and water areas enumerated in this section are hereby designated by law as “state historic sites,” and this section is a registry of state historic sites situated on property owned by

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

the state, its governmental subdivisions, the Minnesota Historical Society, and the board of regents of the University of Minnesota.

Subd. 2. Kathio, owned by the Minnesota Historical Society, is in Mille Lacs county and consists of approximately 112 acres in sections 27 and 28, township 43 north, range 27 west.

Subd. 3. Minnesota Man, owned by the state, is in Otter Tail county, and consists of government lot 5, township 136 north, range 43 west.

Subd. 4. Browns Valley Man, owned by the village of Browns Valley, is in Traverse county and consists of block 23, Platteau Addition, village of Browns Valley.

Subd. 5. Continental Divides, Browns Valley, owned by the state, is in Traverse county and consists of section 29, township 125 north, range 49 west.

Subd. 6. Continental Divide, Virginia, owned by the state, is in St. Louis county and is located at the place where U. S. Highway No. 53 crosses the Laurentian Divide north of Virginia.

Subd. 7. Connor's Fur Post, owned by the state, is in Pine county and consists of approximately 3.73 acres located within government lot 4 and the southwest quarter of the southeast quarter, section 31, township 39 north, range 21 west.

Subd. 8. Bourassa's Fur Post, owned by the board of regents of the University of Minnesota, is in St. Louis county and consists of government lots 1, 2, 3, and 4 in section 22, township 67 north, range 17 west.

Subd. 9. Fort Ripley, owned by the state, is in Morrison county and is located within the boundaries of Camp Ripley Military Reservation.

Subd. 10. Wood Lake, owned by the state, is in Yellow Medicine county and is located within the boundaries of Wood Lake State Wayside.

Subd. 11. Acton, owned by the state, is in Meeker county and is located within the boundaries of Acton Monument.

Subd. 12. Camp Release, owned by the state, is in Lac qui Parle county and is located within the boundaries of Camp Release Memorial State Wayside.

Subd. 13. Oliver H. Kelley Homestead, owned by the Minnesota Historical Society, is in Sherburne county and consists of

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

approximately 191.09 acres in sections 14 and 23, township 32 north, range 26 west.

Subd. 14. Wm. W. Mayo House, owned by the city of Le Sueur, is in Le Sueur county and is the city library, located at 118 North Main Street in the city of Le Sueur.

Subd. 15. William G. LeDuc House, owned by the Minnesota Historical Society, is in Dakota county and consists of a two acre site located in lot 24, Auditor's Subdivision 9, in the city of Hastings.

Subd. 16. Alexander Ramsey House, owned by the Minnesota Historical Society and the city of Saint Paul, is in Ramsey county and consists of lots 11, 12, 13, and 14, or fractional parts thereof, and lots 15, 16, 17, and 18, all in block 28, Rice and Irvine's Addition to Saint Paul.

Subd. 17. Washington County Courthouse, owned by Washington county, is in Washington county and consists of block 39, original town plat of Stillwater, township 30 north, range 20 west.

Subd. 18. Minnehaha Depot, owned by the Minnesota Historical Society, is in Hennepin county and consists of approximately one acre within an area bounded by the Chicago, Milwaukee, St. Paul and Pacific railways, I & M main track, 50th street, 42nd street, and Minnehaha avenue in the city of Minneapolis.

Subd. 19. Defender's Monument, Two Battles of New Ulm, owned by the city of New Ulm, is in Brown county and is located on the boulevard on Center street between Washington street and State street in the city of New Ulm.

Sec. 4. [138.54] **State historic sites; registry, Fort Snelling State Historical Park.** Subdivision 1. The land and water areas enumerated in this section are hereby designated by law as "state historic sites" and this section is a registry of state historic sites situated on property owned by the state.

Subd. 2. Fort Snelling, owned by the state, is in Hennepin county and is located within the authorized boundaries of Fort Snelling State Historical Park.

Sec. 5. [138.55] **State historic sites; registry, state owned lands administered by the Conservation Department.** Subdivision 1. The land and water areas enumerated in this section are hereby designated by law as "state historic sites," and this section is a registry of state historic sites situated on property owned by the state and administered by the Conservation Department.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 2. Source of the Mississippi River, owned by the state, is in Clearwater county and is located within the boundaries of Itasca State Park.

Subd. 3. Blue Mound, owned by the state, is in Rock county and is located within the boundaries of Blue Mound State Park.

Subd. 4. Old Crow Wing, owned by the state, is in Crow Wing county and is located within the boundaries of Crow Wing State Park.

Subd. 5. Traverse des Sioux, owned by the state, is in Nicollet county and is located within the boundaries of Traverse des Sioux State Memorial Wayside.

Subd. 6. Old Crossing, owned by the state, is in Red Lake county, and consists of the northwest half of the northwest quarter, section 33, township 151 north, range 45 west, or Old Crossing Treaty Memorial State Wayside.

Subd. 7. Grand Portage of the St. Louis River, owned by the state, is in Carlton county and is located within the boundaries of Jay Cooke State Park.

Subd. 8. Savanna Portage, owned by the state, is in Aitkin county and is located within the boundaries of Savanna Portage State Park.

Subd. 9. Lac qui Parle Mission, owned by the state, is in Chippewa county and is located within the boundaries of Chippewa Mission Memorial State Wayside.

Subd. 10. Fort Ridgely, owned by the state, is in Nicollet county and is located within the boundaries of Fort Ridgely State Park.

Subd. 11. Birch Coulee, owned by the state, is in Renville county and is located within the boundaries of Birch Coulee State Memorial Park.

Subd. 12. Upper Sioux Agency, owned by the state, is in Yellow Medicine county and is located within the boundaries of Upper Sioux Agency State Park.

Subd. 13. Ruins of Joseph R. Brown House, owned by the state, is in Renville county and is located within the boundaries of Joseph R. Brown Memorial Park.

Subd. 14. Charles A. Lindbergh House, owned by the state, is in Morrison county and is located within the boundaries of Charles A. Lindbergh State Park.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 15. Old Mill, owned by the state, is in Marshall county, and is located within the boundaries of Old Mill State Park.

Subd. 16. Soudan Mine, owned by the state, is in St. Louis County and is located within the boundaries of Tower Soudan State Park.

Subd. 17. Seppman Mill, owned by the state, is in Blue Earth county and located within the boundaries of Minneopa State Park.

Subd. 18. Count Beltrami Monument, owned by the state, is in Beltrami county and is located within the boundaries of Count Beltrami Monument Park.

Subd. 19. Hinckley Fire Monument, owned by the state, is in Pine county and is located within the boundaries of Hinckley Memorial Cemetery, in the village of Hinckley.

Sec. 6. [138.56] **State historic sites; registry, lands owned by the cities of St. Paul and Minneapolis.** Subdivision 1. The land and water areas enumerated in this section are hereby designated by law as "state historic sites," and this section is a registry of state historic sites situated on property owned by the cities of St. Paul and Minneapolis.

Subd. 2. Indian Mounds Park, owned by the city of Saint Paul, is in Ramsey county and consists of the northeast quarter of the northwest quarter of section 8, township 28 north, range 22 west.

Subd. 3. Chapel of St. Paul, owned by the city of Saint Paul, is in Ramsey county and consists of lots 2 and 3 and a fractional part of lot 1, block 33, Saint Paul.

Subd. 4. *Old State Capitol Site*, owned by the city of Saint Paul, is in Ramsey county and consists of Block 6, Bazille's Addition to Saint Paul.

Subd. 5. Minnehaha Falls, owned by the city of Minneapolis, is in Hennepin county and is located within the boundaries of Minnehaha Park, Minneapolis.

Sec. 7. [138.57] **State historic sites; registry, federally owned lands.** Subdivision 1. The land and water areas enumerated in this section are hereby designated by law as "state historic sites," and this section is a registry of state historic sites situated on property owned by the United States government.

Subd. 2. Flat Lake Mounds, in Becker county, consists of

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

sections 27 and 28, township 141 north, range 39 west, and is located in Tamarac National Wildlife Refuge.

Subd. 3. Eagle Mountain, in Cook county, consists of sections 34 and 35, township 63 north, range 2 west.

Subd. 4. Red Pipestone Quarries, in Pipestone county, is located within the boundaries of Pipestone National Monument.

Subd. 5. Grand Portage, in Cook county, is located within the boundaries of Grand Portage National Monument.

Subd. 6. Fort Snelling, in Hennepin county, is located within the authorized boundaries of Fort Snelling State Park.

Subd. 7. Camp Coldwater, in Hennepin county, is located within the authorized boundaries of Fort Snelling State Park.

Subd. 8. Duluth Ship Canal, in St. Louis county, is located within the boundaries of Government Park on Minnesota Point in the city of Duluth.

Subd. 9. Minnesota Point Lighthouse, in St. Louis county, is located in the extreme easternmost portion of Minnesota Point in the city of Duluth.

Subd. 10. Major Lawrence Taliaferro's Indian Agency, Fort Snelling, in Hennepin county, is located within the authorized boundaries of Fort Snelling State Park.

Sec. 8. [138.58] **State historic sites; registry, privately owned lands.** Subdivision 1. The land and water areas enumerated in this section are hereby designated by law as "state historic sites," and this section is a registry of state historic sites situated on property owned by private persons.

Subd. 2. Grand Mound, in Koochiching county, consists of government lot 2, section 32, township 70 north, range 26 west.

Subd. 3. Petroglyphs, in Cottonwood county, consists of the south half of the northeast quarter, section 8, and the north half of the southeast quarter of section 8, all in township 107 north, range 35 west.

Subd. 4. Yucatan, in Houston county, consists of the northwest quarter of section 8, township 102 north, range 7 west.

Subd. 5. Sweeney Fort, in Goodhue county, consists of the southeast quarter of section 28, township 113 north, range 16 west.

Subd. 6. Orwell Farm, in Otter Tail county, consists of the

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

north half of the northwest quarter, section 33, and the south half of the southwest quarter, section 28, all in township 132 north, range 44 west.

Subd. 7. Kensington Rune Stone Discovery, in Douglas county, consists of the southeast quarter of section 14, township 127 north, range 40 west.

Subd. 8. Buffalo Ridge, in Murray county, consists of the northwest quarter of section 26, township 106 north, range 43 west.

Subd. 9. Carver's Cave, in Ramsey county, consists of block 19, the southeast quarter of the southeast quarter, in section 32, township 29 north, range 22 west, in the city of Saint Paul.

Subd. 10. Fort St. Charles, in Lake of the Woods county, is located on Magnuson Island in Lake of the Woods.

Subd. 11. Fort Beauharnois, in Goodhue county, consists of government lot 3, section 12, and government lot 1, section 13, township 112 north, range 13 west.

Subd. 12. Cantonment New Hope, in Dakota county, is located within the authorized boundaries of Fort Snelling State Park.

Subd. 13. Lower Sioux Agency, in Redwood county, consists of part of the east half of the northwest quarter of section 8, township 112 north, range 34 west.

Subd. 14. Redwood Ferry, in Renville county, consists of approximately five acres, including lots 2 and 3 of section 5, township 112 north, range 34 west.

Subd. 15. Site of Hanging 38 Sioux, in Blue Earth county, is located at the Historic Marker situated at Front and Main streets in the city of Mankato.

Subd. 16. Old Mendota, in Dakota county, consists of the northwest quarter of section 27, and the northeast quarter of section 28, township 28 north, range 23 west, in the village of Mendota.

Subd. 17. Frontenac, in Goodhue county, consists of the southeast quarter of section 2, the northeast quarter of section 11, and the northwest quarter of section 12, in township 112 north, range 13 west, in the village of Frontenac.

Subd. 18. Taylor's Falls, in Chisago county, consists of lots 20, 21, 22, and 23 in block 34; lots 8, 9, 10, and 11 in block 41; and lots 10, 11, and 12 in block 39 in the village of Taylors Falls.

Subd. 19. Wendelin E. Grimm Homestead, in Carver coun-

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

ty, consists of the south half of the northwest quarter of section 4, township 116 north, range 24 west.

Subd. 20. Peter Gideon Homestead, in Hennepin county, consists of division 133, part of government lot 6, section 33, township 117 north, range 23 west.

Subd. 21. Sinclair Lewis Home, in Stearns county, is located at 812 Third street south, in the city of Sauk Centre.

Subd. 22. James J. Hill House, in Ramsey county, consists of lots 4, 5, 6, and 7, block 70, Irvine Addition in the city of Saint Paul.

Subd. 23. Burbank Griggs House, in Ramsey county, consists of lot 1, block 12, Terrace Park Addition in the city of Saint Paul.

Subd. 24. Ole Bakken Cabin, in Polk county, is located in the southwest corner of the southwest quarter of section 29, township 148 north, range 41 west.

Subd. 25. 1848 Convention Site, in Washington county, consists of lots 1 and 2, block 26, original town plat of Stillwater, in township 30 north, range 20 west.

Subd. 26. Site of First Commercial Sawmill, in Washington county, consists of block 47, original plat of village of Marine on St. Croix.

Subd. 27. Nicollet Island, in Hennepin county consists of Nicollet island, government lot 1, section 23, township 29 north, range 24 west.

Subd. 28. Falls of St. Anthony, in Hennepin county, consists of the Falls of St. Anthony located on the east three quarters of the south half of section 23, township 29 north, range 24 west.

Subd. 29. Pickwick Mill, in Winona county, is located within the center of the southwest quarter of section 13, township 106 north, range 6 west.

Subd. 30. Fugle's Mill, in Olmsted county, is located within section 20, township 105 north, range 13 west, where a paved highway crosses the north branch of the Root river.

Subd. 31. Harkin-Massopust Store, in Nicollet county, consists of the southeast quarter of the southeast quarter of section 30, township 111 north, range 31 west.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 32. Mountain Iron Mine, in St. Louis county, consists of sections 3 and 4, township 58 north, range 18 west.

Subd. 33. Hull-Rust-Mahoning Mine, in St. Louis county, consists of sections 1 and 2, township 57 north, range 21 west.

Subd. 34. Sugar Point, in Cass county, consists of lot 1, section 35, township 143 north, range 29 west, Leech Lake Indian Reservation.

Subd. 35. Pike's Fort, in Morrison county, consists of lot 1, section 7, township 128 north, range 29 west.

Subd. 36. Meighen Store, consists of the northwest quarter of Section 13, township 102 north, range 11 west.

Sec. 9. [138.59] **Notice to Minnesota Historical Society of land acquisition.** Whenever the state or any governmental subdivision thereof acquires any of the property enumerated in section 5 as a state historic site it is the duty of the officer in charge of such acquisition to notify in writing, as promptly as may be expedient, the Minnesota Historical Society of such acquisition.

Sec. 10. [138.60] **Duties of the state and governmental subdivisions in regard to state historic sites; prohibitions.** Subdivision 1. **Notice.** The state, its departments and agencies, including the board of regents of the University of Minnesota, each city, village, borough, town, county, school district, and other body corporate and politic, are by this act notified of the existence of "state historic sites" on publicly owned property and on property owned by the Minnesota Historical Society as enumerated in section 3.

Subd. 2. **Prohibitions.** Neither the state nor any of the instrumentalities of government enumerated in subdivision 1 shall cause to change or alter the physical features or historic character of any site designated in section 3 as a "state historic site" without first obtaining the prior approval thereof in writing of the Minnesota Historical Society. The state or such instrumentalities of government may appeal to the executive council from any ruling or action of the Minnesota Historical Society, within 30 days after receiving notice thereof, and after a hearing on the matter the executive council may take such action as it deems necessary including a decision as to whether or not the change or alteration should be approved.

Subd. 3. **Prohibitions.** Neither the state nor any of the instrumentalities of government enumerated in subdivision 1 shall cause to change or alter the physical features or historic character of any site designated in section 4 as a "state historic site" without first

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

obtaining the prior approval thereof in writing of the Minnesota Historical Society and the Conservation Department.

Sec. 11. [138.61] **Cooperation.** The state and its governmental subdivisions shall cooperate with the Minnesota Historical Society in safeguarding "state historic sites" and in the preservation of historic and archeological sites.

Sec. 12. [138.62] **Minnesota historic sites, changes.** Sites designated as "state historic sites" by sections 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7 may be changed from time to time, and the Minnesota Historical Society is respectfully requested to notify the legislature of the needs for such changes, and to make recommendations in regard thereto so that the registries of historic sites may be kept current and complete.

Sec. 13. [138.63] **Title.** This act may be cited as "The Minnesota Historic Sites Act of 1965."

Sec. 14. **Effective date.** This act is in effect on and after July 1, 1965.

Approved May 25, 1965.

CHAPTER 780—H. F. No. 2000

[Coded]

An act relating to officers and employees in the classified service of the state civil service; providing for certain insurance, medical, and related benefits; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1961, Sections 15.35, 15.36, and 471.61, Subdivision 4.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. [43.42] **Civil service employees; life and health benefits; intent.** It is the intent of this act to provide certain state officers and employees with certain life insurance and health benefits coverage to be paid for by the state. This act does not preclude an eligible state officer or employee from enrolling his eligible dependents in a plan otherwise made available by the board.

Sec. 2. [43.43] **Definitions.** As used in this act (a) "state employee" for the purpose of determining eligibility for the benefits plans hereunder means all regular employees in the classified service of the state civil service and paid on the state payroll;

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.